
  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The March 2019 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District will be held 

will be held on Thursday March 21, 2019 at 6:00 pm at the Horseheads Free Library405 S. 
Main St. Horseheads, NY 14845. The agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are unable 
to attend, please inform Ms. Kappanadze  (607-259-2646), Mrs. Santulli (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw (733-
8611).   

 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2019-13)   
4.  Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document 2019-14)  
 b) Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document 2019-15)  
5.  Correspondence  
6.  President’s report  
7.  Director’s Report 

Consent Item: Approval of Personnel Actions for February (Appendix C).  
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve Personnel actions as submitted. 
Consent Item: Approval of the Teen Space Contract 
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the award of the contract to Williams 
Construction. 

8.  Committee reports:   
a)  Executive Committee (Kappanadze)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-16) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2019-17)  

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Schwesinger) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting  (document 2019-18) 

 d) Personnel Committee (Chollet)  
 e) Election and Continuity Committee (Rogan) 
 f) Advocacy Committee (O'Dell-Wehling) 
9. Executive Session 
10.  Old business     
11.  New business 
12.  Period for public expression  
13.  Adjournment  
 



(Minutes of the FEBRUARY 21, 2019 meeting of the Chemung County Library District 
Board of Trustees. Document #2019-13)  
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by President Marge Kappanadze. Present were 
Ann Hayes, Pam Larnard, Phyllis Rogan, Will Wehling, Martha Smith, Jack Schamel, 
Lillian White, Lee Saginario, Karl Schwesinger and Tim Blandford, Rachel Dworkin and 
Jessica Roberts. Excused were Pat Silvernail and Bonnie Chollet. Also present were Joan 
Santulli and Ron Shaw, the Library District’s Administration. 
 
Mr. Shaw introduced board members to Kimberly Middaugh, the new attorney from Sayles 
& Evans who will be representing the Library District.  Ms. Middaugh has experience in 
municipal affairs and in civil litigation.  Ms. Middaugh stated that she is looking forward to 
working with the Library District.  
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the January 2019 meeting (Document #2019-07) were presented 
for board review. Ms. Larnard moved, seconded by Mr. Wehling to approve the minutes of 
the January meeting as submitted in writing. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Financial  Report. The January 31, 2019 Financial Report (Document #2019-08) was 
presented for board review. Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. Dworkin to accept the 
Financial Report dated 1/31/19 as distributed. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2019-09). Mr. Schamel stated that there are two 
additional invoices that need to be approved for payment.  Centurion for security software in 
the amount of $1,039.69 and Bolan & Associates payment to the Architect for the design of 
the Teen Space and the bid documents in the amount of $6,850.00.  Ms. Dworkin moved, 
seconded by Ms. Smith that the board authorize the payment of the unpaid bills dated 
2/13/19 and including the two new invoices listed above – General Fund - $33,903.77 and 
the Grant Fund - $462.33 as distributed in writing. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.    

 
Correspondence.   President Kappanadze read a thank you note to the board from Lynn 
Shepson and family for providing warm hospitality, food and décor at the dedication 
ceremony for former Director Jim Sleeth.  Ms. Shepson stated that she felt that the ceremony 
honored Jim in a very special way and attendees mentioned that it was a perfect tribute to his 
memory. The note/card will be filed with other trustee correspondence.  
 
Mr. Shaw reported that the Library District received one library card application from the 
ones sent home with the elementary school students of the Elmira Heights School District. 
He also reported receipt of $1,000 from the Olmstead Fund of the Community Foundation 
and another $1,000 check from the Community Foundation in support of the 2019 Mini 
Maker Faire.  
 
Regarding other funds recently received by the Library District, Ms. Dworkin moved, 
seconded by Mr. Wehling to accept the $9,761 check from the Friends of the Horseheads 
Library. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Ms. Dworkin 
to accept the $16,000 donation from the Friends of CCLD. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
  
President’s Report.  Ms. Kappanadze reminded trustees that their Sexual Harassment 
Prevention Training is due to be completed by the end of March.  
 
Director’s Report.   



CONSENT ITEM: Approval of Personnel Actions (Appendix C). Resolved by Ms. Rogan, 
seconded by Mr. Schwesinger that the CCLD Board of Trustees approves the February list 
of Personnel actions as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
CONSENT ITEM: Approval of the 2018 NYS Annual Report. Resolved by Mr. Wehling, 
seconded by Ms. Hayes that the CCLD Board of Trustees approves the New York State 
Annual Report for fiscal year 2018 as submitted in writing.  VOTE:  Unanimously 
Approved.  
 
Mr. Shaw reported on a phone conversation he recently had with Harold Shoemaker, the 
Assistant Superintendent of the Town of Van Etten regarding the possible move of the Van 
Etten Library. Regarding the consideration of moving the Van Etten Library to another 
Town building, the Town is doing a feasibility study regarding this move.  Mr. Shaw was 
able to express concerns that the Library District has regarding this proposal.  Questions 
include who will pay for the move; who will pay for the shelving needed for the new 
location; will the Town keep the same financial arrangements with CCLD or will they now 
want payment for rent or utilities???? When looking at statistics regarding this library with 
only 5,000 circs last year and only 250 patrons who have library cards, CCLD will need to 
decide if it is economically feasible to keep a library in Van Etten. 
 
Mr. Shaw reminded trustees that the deadline for registering to attend Advocacy Day in 
Albany is February 22.  He will be attending the event.  Mr. Shaw also stated that the spring 
Continuing Education Day is set for June 28th at Corning Community College.  The Library 
District is working with the staff from the Southern Tier Library System to plan the topics to 
be offered at the workshop. As always, board members are invited to attend.  More 
information will follow once plans have been completed.  
 
The Director's Report (Appendix A) and the CCLD Staff Reports (Appendix B) for last 
month were submitted in writing to the board.  

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to 
the board (Document #2019-10). Nothing new to report 

Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting 
was presented in writing to the board (Document #2019-11). Nothing new to report.   
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee 
meeting was presented in writing to the board (Document #2019-12).  Regarding the shelves 
which were moved to make room for the new Teen Space, Mr. Shaw stated that a new floor 
plan has been received that will allow 42 inch wide aisles.  The movers will be coming back 
to move the shelves to match the new diagram.  
 
Also regarding the Teen Space, bid documents were received from three companies.  The 
bidders and their bid amounts are as follows:  Elmira Structures $55,500; Streeters 
Associates $65,000 and Williams Construction $49,490.  Andrew Harding, the architect 
working on the project will review the bid documents and make a recommendation to the 
board on which company to award the bid to.  Under New York State rules, the low bidder 
must be approved unless there is a valid reason to reject their bid.  
 
Mr. Shaw sent out a listing to the board of upgrades and building projects that have been 
completed on all CCLD library buildings since 2006 to present.  There has been 2.4 million 
dollars of improvements to our buildings in the last 10 years.  



 
Personnel Committee. Ms. Dworkin has agreed to become the new Chair for this 
Committee.  She stated that they are working on the survey form to send out to board 
members and staff regarding the Director’s annual evaluation.   
  
Election & Continuity Committee. Ms. Rogan stated that Ms. Denise King’s term on the 
board of the Southern Tier Library System ends this year.  It is CCLD’s responsibility to 
nominate a person to replace Ms. King.  Regarding CCLD’s trustee election of 2018, she 
stated that Ms. Cook, the election Commissioner was disappointed in the low number of 
voters who came to the polls.  Next year we will need to do a better job of advertising the 
election.  
 
Advocacy Committee.  It was reported that BookFest is being held at Diven School on 
March 1st.  CCLD staff will be there representing the Library District.   
 
Old Business.  Regarding the problems CCLD had last year with people hanging out under 
the viaduct near the Steele Library, the Library District would still like to meet with Brent 
Stermer, the Councilman who represents this District.  An ad-hoc committee needs to be 
formed to formulate a list of problems and concerns with this matter prior to meeting with 
the City.  Mr. Schamel moved, seconded by Mr. Wehling to form a committee that includes 
the two of them plus Ms. Smith. VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.  The committee will 
report back to the board once they have brainstormed this issue.  
 
New Business.   
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:55pm. The next regular meeting of the board will be held 
on Thursday, March 21st, 2019 at 6:00pm at the Horseheads Free Library, 405 South 
Main Street, Horseheads, NY. 









 Document #2019-16      
 
Report of the March 6th, 2018 meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District:   
 
The meeting came to order at 6:00pm. Attending the meeting from the Executive 
Committee were Marge Kappanadze, Phyllis Rogan, Martha Smith and Jack Schamel; 
and Joan Santulli, CCLD management. Other board members in attendance were Lillian 
White, Lee Saginario, Pam Larnard, Rachel Dworkin and Ann Hayes.  
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Santulli submitted the Unpaid Bill List dated 2/6/19 for the Grant 
Fund - $285.51 and the General Fund - $38,997.75 which included the recently submitted 
Dimon & Bacorn invoice approved by the B & G Committee.  Ms. Dworkin moved, 
seconded by Ms. Larnard to approve payment of the bills as submitted in writing.  
VOTE: Unanimously Approved. 
 
President Kappanadze requested that Mr. Shaw update the board on the status of the 
boiler at the Steele Library which caused the library to close early on February 28th.  Mr. 
Shaw stated that the County Buildings & Grounds rep has reduced the temperature 
setting and is leaving 2 valves open so that there will be no pressure build-up in the 
future.  An old quote for replacement was listed at $12,000. He will request a new 
estimate for replacement.  
 
Ms. Kappanadze reminded trustees that the Sexual Harassment Prevention Training must 
be completed by each one of them by the end of March.  Mr. Shaw has sent out the email 
from STLS that lists the questions that need to be discussed by board members in a group 
setting.  This may take place at the April meeting.  Mr. Shaw stated that staff members 
have requested that this training session take place at the Continuing Ed day in June.  He 
is conferring with Brian Hildreth at STLS to verify if this is a possibility.  
 
Director Ron Shaw reported that the draft of the Strategic Plan for 2019-2021.  Board 
members are asked to review the plan.  He also sent out a copy of the draft of the Staff 
Plan which has been reviewed and signed by all Department Heads of CCLD.  
 
Mr. Shaw reported receipt of $500 from the Corning Museum of Glass as a supporter of 
the upcoming Maker Faire.  The Library District has also received the tax revenue check 
from Chemung County for fiscal year 2019.    
 
Reporting on the bus trip to Albany for Legislation Day, Mr. Shaw reported that they met 
with a representative from Senator O’Mara’s office and personally with representatives 
Chris Friend and Vincent Palmisano.  All three are supportive of libraries getting state 
aid.  
 
The Labor / Management meeting was held this afternoon.  Ms. White attended as a 
representative of the board of trustees.  Discussion centered on scheduling for holidays, 
in particular for Black Friday.  The union’s viewpoint is that due to a lack of circulation 
and visitors on that day, it is advisable to close the Steele Library instead of paying 
overtime to staff the library for the day.  Mr. Shaw requested that the union give him a 
letter stating their recommendation for Black Friday.  It was stated that any change to this 
holiday will require a Memorandum of Agreement to be drawn up to update the union 
contract which states that Black Friday is a day that the library will be open.  The union 



members will vote on it prior to it being brought back to the board for review and 
discussion.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:13pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District will be held on Wednesday, April 3rd, 2019 at 6pm in 
the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library.    



Document #2019-17 
 
Report of the March 14th, 2019 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting were CCLD board members Jack Schamel, Lillian White and Marge 
Kappanadze. Also attending were Joan Santulli and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration. The 
meeting opened at 8:02am.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the February 28th, 2019 Financial Report to the Committee. The Report 
will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Santulli presented the Unpaid Bills Detail dated 3/14/19 for the General Fund - $69,126.15. 
The list includes a payment to Chemung County ($21,389.85) for the 4th Quarter 2018 Utility bill 
for all libraries and a payment to the Southern Tier Library System ($30,051.25) for Cost Share 
for the 1st Quarter of 2019.  The Unpaid Bills Details will be forwarded to the full CCLD board 
for its consideration.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:08am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, April 10th, 2019 at 8:00am in the Petrie Conference Room of the Steele 
Memorial Library.   



Document #2019-18 
 
Report of the March 6th, 2019 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung County 
Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30pm. Present were Ms. Smith, Ms. Saginario and Ms. Kappanadze. Also attending 
was Joan Santulli and Ronald Shaw, CCLD Management. 
 
The Committee received reports on the following: 
 
Teen Section.   The Library District has received an invoice from Dimon & Bacorn for the moving of the 
shelving units on the second floor to make room for the new Teen Space.  The Committee will recommend to 
the Executive Committee that the bill in the amount of $13,806.25 be paid.  Mr. Shaw has met with a 
representative from Dimon & Bacorn to go over the new floor plan for making the shelving units meet 
A.D.A. requirements.  This move is being coordinated with Bolan Associates.  They will send a 
representative to Steele who, for two days at no charge, will direct the moving of the shelves.  
 
Three bids were received for the minor demolition, installation of carpet, painting, modifications to the 
existing HVAC system and Electrical power and lighting revisions for the Teen Space.  Andrew Harding, the 
architect for the project, has reviewed all the paperwork and has recommended in writing that the Library 
District award the job to the lowest bidder, Williams Construction in the amount of $49,490.00.  The 
Committee agrees with the architect’s recommendation to award the bid to Williams Construction.   
 
Other Steele Projects.  Mr. Shaw submitted an updated quote for the electronic sign to be installed on Church 
Street at the Steele Library.  The quotes include installation of the sign.  A full Color double-faced sign will 
cost $22,537.00; a monochrome sign will cost $18,428.35.  The Committee will review the quotes in order to 
make a recommendation to the board on which sign to purchase. It was noted that CCLD has $25,000 set 
aside in a reserve fund to pay for this signage.  
 
Mr. Shaw has sent out a listing of all Capital Improvements made to CCLD library buildings since the 2006 
Existing Conditions Report was submitted to the board.  
 
Regarding the recent issue with the boiler at the Steele Library (on February 28th the library closed early due 
to the boiler breaking down), the County Buildings and Grounds have been checking on the status since the 
problem arose.  There have been no issues since the 28th.  An old estimate for replacement was listed as 
$12,000.  Mr. Shaw will seek out a new estimate to be reviewed for future consideration should it be 
necessary to replace it.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:44pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, April 3rd, 
2019 at 5:30pm in the Petrie Conference Room at the Steele Memorial Library. 
 


	Agenda 2019-03
	Document 2019-13
	Document 2019-14
	document 2019-15
	Document 2019-16
	Document 2019-17
	Document 2019-18

